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CANADA 

JEFF MALPASS 
Commissioner, 
Corporate SeNices 
and City Clerk 

' 

Corporate Services Dept. 
300 Dufferin Avenue 
Room308 
PO Box 5035 
London, ON N6A 4L9 

Office: (519) 661-6400 
Fax:(519)661-4892 

www.city.london.on.ca 

REGISTERED 

October 6, 1999 

Ontario Heritage Foundation 
10 Adelaide Street East 
Toronto ON MSC 1J3 

- --- - ------------

Re: Designation of Victoria Park 
The Ontario Heritage Act, R.S.0.1990, c. 0.18 

Enclosed for your information is notice of the Council of The Corporation of the 
City of London's intention to designate the property identified above pursuant to 
Subsection 29(3) of the Ontario Heritage Act, R.S.0.1990, c. 0.18. 

Jeff A. Malpass 
Commissioner of Corporate 
Services and City Clerk 
/erg 

Encl. 
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NOTICE OF INTENTION TO DESIGNATE PLACE 
OF ARCHITECTURAL AND/OR HISTORICAL VALUE 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Council of The Corporation of the City of London 
intends to designate as a place of architectural, historic and/or contextual value or interest 
the following property in accordance with the Ontario Heritage Act, R.S.0. 1990: 

Propet"ty Description Publication Date 

Victoria Park October 9, 1999 
(Block bounded by 
Dufferin Avenue, Clarence Street, 
Central Avenue and Wellington Street) 

Last Date For Objection 

November 8, 1999 

The detailed reasons for designation of this property can be seen in or obtained from the 
Office of the City Clerk, Room 308, City Hall, 300 Dufferin Avenue, London, Ontario 
N6A 4L9 during normal office hours (8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday to Friday). Any 
person who objects to this intended designation must, within thirty days after the date of 
the first publication, serve on the Commissioner of Corporate Services and City Clerk a 
notice of objection in writing, setting out the reason for the objection and all relevant facts. 
The Ontario Heritage Act provides that where a notice of objection has been served, the 
Council shall refer the matter to the Conservation Review Board for a hearing. 

DATED at London, Ontario on October 9, 1999. 

Jeff A. Malpass 
Commissioner of Corporate 
Services and City Clerk 
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The Corporation of the City of London 
Corporate Services Department 

• 

October 5, 1999 

L. H. Reed 
City Administrator 

JEFF MALPASS 
Commissioner, 

Corporate Services 
and City Clerk 

I hereby certify that the Municipal Council, at its session held on October 4, 1999 resolved: 

6. That, on the recommendation of the London Advisory Committee on Heritage, notice 
of the Municipal Council's intentions to designate Victoria Park, the block bounded by Dufferin 
A venue, Clarence Street, Central A venue and Wellington Street, to be of historical and architectural 
value or interest BE GIVEN for the attached reasons under the provisions of subsection 29(3) of 
the Ontario Heritage Act, R.S. 0. 1990, c. 0.18; on the understanding that the land to be included 
in the designation will be as shown on the assessment roll. ( 6/24/PC) 

--
• 

._ Jeff A. Malpass 
~--

Co11nnissioner of Corporate Services 
& City Clerk 

• 1 ·2 -10- 1999 
/hal 

attach. 

cc: 

---------------

Ontario Heritage Foundation, 77 Bloor Street West, 2nd floor, Toronto, M7A 2R9 
V. A. Cote, Commissioner of Planning and Development, Room 703 
M. Gladysz, Heritage Planner, Room 609 
G. Barrett, Planning Administrator - Parks Planning & Design, Room 609 
C. Geraghty, Doci11nentation Clerk* 
Chair and Members, London Advisory Committee on Heritage 

Office: (519) 661-6400 • Fax: (519) 661-4892 
300 Dufferin Avenue • Room 308 • PO Box 5035 • London ON N6A 4L9 

www.city.london.on.ca 
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Reasons For Designation - Victoria Parl{ 
(The Block bounded by Dufferin Avenue, Clarance Street, Central Avenue and Wellington Street) 

Historical Reasons I 

Victoria Park represents a unique combination of beauty, a1nenity and heritage in the City of 
London. The 6.25 hectare park has been a gathering place for Londoners since 187 4. Victoria Parle 
is of significant historic, architectural and cultural heritage landscape importance in five key areas: 

(a) 
(b) 
(c) 
(d) 
(e) 

As a registered archaeological site; 
Military history; 

• 

A designed landscape; 
A place of public gathering and celebration; and 
Monun1ents. 

• 

Victoria Park is a significant resource for archaeology in London, exhibiting three critical layers of 
historic importance. Prehistoric remains from the native occupation of the area can be found below 
ground, as well as, remains from the British Military occupation. The Fra1ned Infantry Barraclcs 
which covered the northern two-thirds of the park property in the period circa 183 8-1873 represents 
the largest and best preserved historic site in the City of London. Victoria Park is also the City's 
most celebrated designed landscape from the 19th century, created by American landscape architect 
Charles Miller in 1878. The layout of the landscape was reminiscent of an English parkland.with 
drives and tree lined wallcs, fountai11s, floral areas and bandstand. Limited remajns of this grand 
parkland era remain today. Victoria Park, from its conception, has continually evolved in its role 
and relationsltlp to London. Its development must be seen in conjunction to the history of design, 
society and conventions, and the City's fiscal and management considerations of various periods. 
To date the park has been idealized as a pleasure ground, a venue of horticultural and artistic 
expression, a recreational facility and most recetJ,tly a civic space for special events. 

Archaeological investigations ofVictoriaPark indicate that the property represents the single largest 
and best prese1-ved histori.c archaeological site in the City of London. It is arguably the most 
important historic archaeological site in the city by virtue of its significance to the history of the 
region and to tl1e development of the municipality. Altogether, these remains represent some of the 
most important and complex issues for future management within the property. 

Archaeological assessment indicates a nu1nber of components within the park including evidence 
of prehistoric Iroquoian occupation sometime within the period 800-15 5 0 AD. 

Historic research has determined that the Framed Infantry Ba'l·racks covered an area of some 10 acres 
including the entire northern two-thirds of Victoria Park; the southern third was used as the drill 
ground and criclcet ground. This Bar·raclcs formed an integral part of the British Military Reserve 
established in London following the Rebellion of 1827. The British Ga 1·rison was based in London 
from 1838 to 1853, when troops were withdrawn to be sent to the Crimean War, and again from 
1861 to 1869. During the mid to late 1850s, the complex served as a refugee ca111p for escaped 
slaves from the United States and as the site of a racially integrated school. The barracks survived 
until the early 1870s, when a fire destroyediheofficers?·,quarters; and the remainder oftl1e structures 
were cleared in preparation for the creation of Victoria Park. 

The ba1Tacks complex included several dozen structures su1:rounded by a stoclcade with projecting 
bastions. The major structures centred around a parade square. It was bounded by the soldiers' 
quarters to north, the officers quarters to the south, the hospital- compound to tl1e west, and the 
canteen, cells, defaulters room, and powder magazine to the east. 

Wl1en the British Government saw no reason to retain the garrison lands, the drive to have the land 
become a public park began. The Municipal Council began to initiate civic improvements such as 
street beautification in 1871 and the establishment of a standing committee on Public parks in 1873. 
It was not untill 878 that London received the deed fo1· Victoria Parle. It was at this time that William 
Saunders presented to City Council plans for the park prepared by American Landscape Architect 
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Charles H. Miller. In March 1878 Charles Miller came to London with the layout plans for the park. 
The plans were adopted, and park development proceeded as per Millers plan. 

Charles Miller (1829- 1902) gained prominence when he becarne the chief gardener for the Bureau 
of Horticulture for the Centennial Exhibition in 187 6 in Philadelphia. Miller is known to have done 
two projects in Southwestern Ontario, both seemingly instigated by Willia in Saunders. The first was 
Victoria Park in 1878 followed by the commission to prepare a landscape and site plan for the 
Ontario Agricultural College, Guelph in 18 82. Through various docu1nents and letters it is known 
that Miller made several visits to Canada during this period of titne. He was recognized as being a 
leading landscape designer and horticulturalist in his day. 

By the end of 1879 the first phase of tl1e parks development was completed. A total of 3 31 trees and 
72 shrubs were added to the double row of maple trees which already s11n·ounded fue grounds. In 
addition walks, drives and a bandshell were installed. The fmal feature added at this ti1ne was the 
famed fountain topped with a cupid which was installed in the centre of the park along with three 
military guns from the Battle of Sebastopol which had been donated by Sir John Carling. 

Victoria Park evolved as it assumed its role as the ''jewel of the parks system''. In 1912 the parl<: was 
placed under the responsibility of the Board of Water Co111111ission (later Public Utilities 
Commission). Recreational activities becatne increasingly important with the introduction of the 
skating rink in 1914. By the 1920s a great number of the park's original ele:,nents such as iron 
benches ,1Jrns, fencing, had been removed due to age and condition and others were replaced with 
contemporary concrete ones. By 1939 the original tlrree tiered fountain was removed and replaced 
with a single level illuminated one. From this time on, the park began a slow, inexorable decline. 
By the late 1950s and into the 1960s the residential character along the north and eastern edge was 
changing with the loss of residential uses, buildings not being oriented to the park, and parking lots. 

An important aspect of the park's history are traditions that have evolved over time. Skating has 
been a part of the park since 1914. Public concerts have been associated with the site since the 
period of tl1e British Ga crison.- The first ba..ndstand was erected in the park in 187 6. With the 
bandstand City Council established a fund for free weekly concerts and encouraged local bands. 
The Salvation Army held Sunday afternoon services in the park for many years. In recent years a 
bandshell was built in 1950 with funds donated by the Kiwanis Club; and the present bandshell was 
built in 1989, again will funds from the IGwanis Club. A very strong tr~dition of festivals and 
special events conti11ues in the park to the present day, with over 30 events occ111Ting annually, most 
notably the Festival of Lights/Winterfest, I{ome County Foll<: Festival, and Remembrance Day 
Services. 

Architectural Reasons 

Several Monu1nents have become important features of Victoria Park. The Boer War Soldiers' 
Mon111nent was added to the park in 1912. The sculpture was corn 1.nissioned by veterans of the Boer 
War from Montreal sculptor George W. Hill. On November 10, 1934 the Cenotaph was dedicated. 
It is a replica of the cenotaph that Sir Edwin Lutyens had designed for Whitehall in London, 
England. This monu 1nent was commissioned by the I.O .D .E. and dedicated to ''The Glorious Dead''. 
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